
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Corvallis-Benton County  
Public Library Board Meeting

A G E N D A  

 Call to Order 

 Introductions 

 Visitors’ Propositions 

 Approval of October 1, 2014 Board Minutes 

 Library Board Packet Questions & Comments  

 Library Board Sub-Committees Discussion 

 Director’s Report 

 Division Manager Reports 

 Board Reports 
 Friends of the Library Board 
 Foundation Board 
 

 Information Sharing 

 Adjournment 

Wednesday 
November 5, 2014 

 
7:30 pm 

 

Woman’s Club 
Board Room 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you are unable to attend the Board 
Meeting, please notify Library Director 
Carolyn Rawles by calling 
(541) 766-6910. 

Documents for Meeting 
 Library Board Minutes – October 1, 2014 

 Library Board Report – October 2014 

 1st Quarter FY 2014-15 Statistics Summary 



CORVALLIS-BENTON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES 
October 1, 2014 

 
Board Present 

 
Jacque Schreck, Chair 
Jennifer Alexander, Vice-Chair 
Katherine Bremser 
Eric Dickey 
Scott Elmshaeuser 
Paula Krane 
Cheryl Maze 
Linda Modrell 
Jana Kay Slater 
Steve Stephenson 
Sravya Tadepalli 
Rob Welsh 
 
Absent/Excused: 
Hal Brauner 
 

Staff Present 
 

Carolyn Rawles, Library Director 
Andrew Cherbas, Extensions and Technology Mgr. 
Mary Finnegan, Adult and Youth Services Manager 
Linda Hart, Senior Administrative Specialist 
Shaun Hearn, Circulation Supervisor 
Carol Klamkin, Management Assistant 
Felicia Uhden, Access Services Manager 
 
 
 
Visitors:  None 

 
 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

Agenda Item Information Only Action 

Call to Order 7:30 pm  

Introductions x  

Visitors’ Propositions  None 

Minutes:  September 3, 2014  Approved as corrected 

Library Board Packet x  

Committee Reports  None 

Director’s Report x  

Division Manager Reports x  

Council Policy Review – CP 95-4.08 
Code of Conduct for All Service Points 
of the Corvallis-Benton County Public 
Library 

 Motion:  Approve with edits. 

Board Reports 
Friends of the Library Board 
Foundation Board 

 
x 
x 

 

Information Sharing x  

Adjournment 8:44 p.m.  

 
 



CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
    I. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Jacque Schreck at 7:30 p.m. 

  II. INTRODUCTIONS 

 Board members and staff introduced themselves to Eric Dickey, the new County 
appointee to the Board. 

 III. VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS - None 

 IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 Katherine Bremser noted two sentences where a word appeared to be missing.  Motion:  
Jennifer Alexander moved and Paula Krane seconded that the minutes be approved as 
corrected.  Motion carried. 

 V. LIBRARY BOARD PACKET QUESTIONS & COMMENTS 

 Carolyn Rawles noted the article about the sex offender arrest had nothing to do with 
the Library or its patrons; it was an arrest that took place in front of the Library.   

VI. LIBRARY BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE DISCUSSION 

 Jacque explained, for the benefit of new Board new members, that last year the Board 
divided itself into three different subcommittees.  The various subcommittees are still in place 
but are “at rest” at the present time.  One committee is putting together the Board’s talking 
points, and they will come back to the Board in November with suggestions.  She also explained 
that this Library Board is an advisory board to the Corvallis City Council. 

VII. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 Carolyn said the contract with OrangeBoy, the consultant who will be involved with 
survey work and analysis for the long range plan, is nearly finalized.  An online patron survey 
will be first step.  She will ask the consultants how much leeway we, as customer, have with the 
survey in case we want to add specific questions.  

 She will participate in a council candidate forum on October 2; department directors 
meet with the candidates to answer questions.  There will a meeting after the November 
election with the new councilors and mayor and Board and Commission chairs. 

 City Council will have a work session on October 9 to review the recommendations of 
the Public Participation Task Force (PPTF).  PPTF is recommending some changes to board 
descriptions, but no changes are recommended specifically for Library Board.   

 The Library will have a grand piano for several months, on loan from OSU and thanks 
to the efforts of OSU Music Professor Rachelle McCabe.  While that piano is here, the Library’s 
current piano will be on loan to the Old Mill School for a few months.  Rachelle does a couple of 
programs for the Library each year. 

 Senior Administrative Specialist interviews were completed and a job offer made to the 
top candidate.  Human Resources is contacting all of the applicants to advise the position has 
been filled.  Once they have completed the notification, the name of the new hire will be 
announced.  She will start on Monday October 20, 2014. 

 The Library belongs to a state-wide consortium for the Overdrive e-Books collection.  
Some publishers won’t sell e-Books to libraries and we can’t get as wide a variety as we’d like.  



The consortium has an opportunity to buy e-Books from Simon & Schuster, but the offer comes 
with the condition that there would be a button on each Library’s e-Books page giving the patron 
the opportunity to purchase the e-Book.  Carolyn said that offering the Kindle format, which the 
Corvallis Library does, allows people to buy the book as they are returning it, so there is 
precedent for allowing patrons to purchase.  However, Kindle users are already Amazon 
customers.  With Simon & Schuster, this purchase ability would apply to every single book they 
make available as an e-book.  The Library would get a small percentage of the sale; Steve 
Stephenson opined it would be enough to involve the library in commercial sales.  Carolyn said 
the consensus of managers and adult services librarians was to not buy Simon & Schuster e-
Books. 

 Mary Finnegan said the Library struggles to meet the needs of the patrons, and finds it can be 
very expensive to keep popular e-Books available.  She explained that many e-Books can only 
be checked out a specified number of times, and then the Library must repurchase that e-Book.  
She said that most patrons buy some e-Books and borrow other e-Books through the Library.  
Linda Modrell wondered if it would be possible to have a tab on the web site labeled “Buying e-
Books” to separate it from the area where patrons check out e-Books.  Carolyn is concerned 
about taking the Library into the commercial realm.  Jacque asked if there can be a disclaimer 
stating this was only way to get Simon & Schuster e-Books.  Jana Kay Slater expressed 
concern about youth getting access to e-Books for purchase, especially if the credit card 
information has been saved.  Carolyn noted it is a Consortium decision, and that decision will be 
reached in November.   

VIII. DIVISION MANAGER REPORTS 

 Adult and Youth Services:  Mary said the Library will have representatives at the Beaver 
Fair on Friday.  November is National Novel Writing Month.   

The time limit on public computers was changed to 90 minutes for the summer as it is 
slower during the summer months.  Staff did some analysis and found most people use just 35 
minutes; however, staff also noticed that during September there were often people waiting and 
many complaints, so the time limit has been dropped back to 60 minutes.   

She said Andrew Cherbas is getting the iPads ready for youth and parents to use in the 
library; they should be available in October.  Early Learning Hubs is a new state-wide program 
focused on early childhood education.  LBCC staff will be at the Library next week to meet with 
youth staff.  Story time continues to be very successful, with a record 120 people recently.  Staff 
is monitoring attendance, and considering different options.  They don’t want to move to the 
Main Meeting Room because the story time room is more intimate. Paula recalled having to 
sign up for a specific story time; Mary said staff prefers to keep it as a drop-in activity.  Carolyn 
said the story time schedule has been revamped so infants are on Tuesday; “Wobblers” are on 
Wednesday, etc.  Library staff recently met with the Health Department to explore how the 
Library can connect with its clients. 

 Administration:  Carol Klamkin said nine candidates were interviewed for the Senior 
Administrative Specialist position.  It was a good pool of applicants, and a person has been 
selected and will start October 20.  Human Resources is still notifying all candidates of the 
decision, she was not at liberty to identify the individual.  Kyra Cardella from Extensions 
Services will produce the “Check it Out” newsletter for October.   

Carol said the Library has been working with Finance for several months on the 
eCommerce project, which will allow patrons to pay their fines online with a credit card.  The last 
she heard it should be ready to launch within the next couple of weeks.  Carolyn noted it is 
already possible to pay fines with a credit card at the self check machines and at the main desk.   

Scott Elmshaeuser asked if people miss the tables that were in the front of the library 
during Fall Festival; Carol said she gets occasional calls about them.  The lawn area, where 



those tables used to be located, has been replaced with planting beds.  She reported that 
building maintenance partnered with Master Gardeners to select the new plants for the planting 
beds.  The Denise Thompson Memorial Garden, which is located next to the front door, is under 
the care of the Master Gardeners.  Carolyn explained that the long term goal is to replace all of 
the lawn with beds for easier maintenance.   

 Access Services:  Felicia Uhden announced that Robert Sullivan has been selected as 
the new Library Specialist III in Technical Services and started September 22.    

A number of Library staff were guests of OSU to attend a virtual conference on the user 
experience, including web sites, how the customer and library processes interact, how buildings 
and signage work with the customer, etc.  Felicia said the attendees were from all around the 
country, and it was a very informative conference. 

Extension Services:  Andrew reported a job offer has been made to one of the 
candidates for the Courier position.   He has hired five new Substitute Clerks.  The Bookmobile 
driver is injured and unable to drive at this time so others are helping out.   

Staff are starting now to talk about the Summer Reading Program for 2015; the theme 
next year is “Every Hero has a Story”.  Philomath had story time at the Philomath Fire 
Department on October 1, and Philomath Extensions Librarian Ashley Hall said it was fantastic.  
Several firefighters read to the kids and gave a tour. 

The iPad system is ready to go; he is waiting for a use policy to be finalized.  The 
eCommerce program is ready to go live; he is just waiting for Finance to give the go-ahead.  

Andrew said his next task is moving forward on the Maker Movement project, which 
includes finding a home for the 3D printer.   Eric Dickey asked if the 3D printer will move from 
place to place; Andrew said it will likely not move, in part because the printer settings are very 
sensitive.  In addition, printing a project can take many hours so staff is needed to watch over 
the process. 

 Circulation:  Shaun Hearn said Circulation will be recruiting for someone to replace 
Robert Sullivan. 

Shaun reported that a typical weekend will see 2,000 to 2,500 people come through the 
doors; there were about 4,500 people during Fall Festival last weekend.   

IX. Code of Conduct Policy Review 

 Carolyn circulated copies of the policy with changes and recommendations noted in 
bold and italic type.  She said this policy is posted in several places in the Library and is used 
every day.  A staff group was asked to review the current policy, solicit input in their work 
groups, and make recommendations.  One suggestion, which she chose not to incorporate, was 
to ban all cell phone use in the Library.  Other suggestions not incorporated included requiring 
shirts and banning shaving.   

Much of the policy is geared to how patrons are affected by the actions of others.  She 
said staff has multiple resources to deal with inappropriate behavior, including a card that is 
handed to the patron asking them to cease certain inappropriate activities or behavior.  She said 
the Library keeps a spreadsheet of people who are banned from the Library, including their 
history with the Library.  The ban on smoking will now follow the City’s regulations, and will 
include a ban on electronic cigarettes and smoking marijuana, should that become legal; the 
language was recommended by the City Attorney.  In addition, eating will be allowed only in 
specified areas.  



In some cases a person who has been banned from the Library may have to meet with 
staff to understand the specific conditions of returning to the Library.  Many conditions can be 
categorized as annoying behavior. The City Attorney recommended leaving references to 
weapons as is.  Linda asked about “unlawful sexual activity”; Carolyn said the City Attorney 
recommended leaving the language as is.   

Jacque asked if the policy covers the majority of the complaints from the public.  
Carolyn said the language in the policy is directed at behavior that interferes with others’ use of 
library and with staff’s ability to do their job.  As an example, she said many people complain 
about people sleeping in the Library, but staff are often reluctant to wake them.  Shaun said 
staff is very complaint-driven, and the policy is used to respond appropriately to complaints.  
Linda asked about service animals in the Library.  Carolyn said federal law states that the only 
animals that are classified as service animals are dogs and miniature horses.  The Library’s 
problem is that people bring companion animals into the Library.  Staff can ask if the animal 
performs some task, if the person has a disability, etc. to help determine if the animal is indeed 
a service animal.  There are a lot of legitimate things animals can do, such as alert to seizures. 

Motion: Paula called for the question.  Jacque asked for a voice vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion:  Paula moved and Steve Stephenson seconded to recommend that HSC 
recommend that Council approve the Policy as edited.  Motion carried. 

XI. BOARD REPORTS 

 Friends of the Library: Jacque reported the Friends had a book sale during Fall Festival, 
but she had no revenue numbers.  Friends will have a holiday book sale on December 6.  There 
are three new members:  Lynn Grube, David Grube, and Lynda Hohenboken.  The next 
meeting is October 20.   

 Foundation Board:  Steve said the group met on September 29 and elected officers.  
Steve was reelected president, and Jacque was reelected vice president.  The group is working 
on its annual donations appeal mailing, which will go out in early November.  There will be a 
donor recognition event on October 23 with a speaker and some displays.  The group has two 
new members:  Mary Anne Sellers and Laura Edmondston.  The next meeting will be November 
24. 

  XI. INFORMATION SHARING 

 Jacque thanked everyone who attended the potluck and brought the great food.  The 
next meeting will be November 5. 

 XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting was adjourned at 8:44 p.m. 



Library Board Report 
Presented November 5, 2014 

 
 
REPORTING PERIOD B October 2014 
 
A.  Department Highlights 
 

Administration   
$ Rachel Denue joined the Administration Division staff as our new Senior 

Administrative Specialist. She replaces Janelle Cook who moved to Portland at 
the end of August. Until her arrival on October 20, we were fortunate to have the 
continued help of Linda Hart from Parks and Recreation Department and Library 
Specialist II Ros Blair. 

$ Building Maintenance Supervisor Bob Fenner attended the Library Management 
Team meeting to discuss upcoming building projects and concerns about our 
custodial service. Surplus furniture and equipment stored in the garage will be 
removed soon, shrubs directly in front of the building will be replaced, and 
stained portions of the carpet in the Main Meeting Room will be replace with the 
carpet squares we have on hand.   

 
Library Services 
Access Services 
$ An internal recruitment is underway for a Library Specialist II in Circulation. This 

is to fill a vacancy created by the promotion of Robert Sullivan to Library 
Specialist III.  

$ Access Services Manager Felicia Uhden met with a student in the online 
Master=s in Library and Information Science program at Drexel University. Her 
assignment was to interview a Technical Services manager about a number of 
management topics.   

$ Changes to the Library Circulation policy have been approved by the City 
Manager and TLC settings have been adjusted to align with the policy. 

$ The representative from Midwest Tape, our main media supplier, met with Library 
Specialist III Tammy Rider, our Acquisitions specialist, and with a number of the 
librarians who select media materials.  

  
Adult & Youth Services 
$ Jerri Wolfe, from LBCC, presented the history and current status of the recently 

formed Linn-Benton-Lincoln Early Learning Hub, as part of the Governor=s Early 
Learning Initiatives. The big outcomes for the State=s early learning system and 
hubs include: kindergarten readiness; stable and attached families; and aligned 
and efficient systems. Early Learning Hubs have five core responsibilities: work 
across traditional program and sector silos for collective community 
accountability; find the children in each community that need help the most; work 
with families to identify their unique and specific needs; link families with services 
and providers who can best address their needs; and account for outcomes 
collectively and cost effectively. This is part of the effort of the State to front load 
our investment in youth to meet the 40-40-20 goal: 



$ Young adults with BA or more—29% today, 40% by 2025 
$ Young adults with Associate degree or certificate—18% today, 40% by 2025 
$ Young adults with a college and career-ready high school dipolom—87% 

today, 100% by 2025 (or the 20% who do not attain the degrees above) 
$ Youth Services Librarian Kristy Kemper Hodge attended the Oregon Library 

Association=s Children=s Services Division (CSD) Fall Workshop in Bend and the 
CSD Board meeting. She is currently serving as the Summer Reading Chair for 
CSD. She picked up materials for the 2015 Summer Reading Program and the 
Youth Services librarians are busy starting to plan next summer=s program! 

$ The first series in a new monthly program in Youth Services began in October. 
AWednesday Wonders@ offers three programs for kids in grades K-2, 3-5, and 6th 
grade and older on a different theme each month. These programs will explore 
books, art, crafts, science, and other activities. October=s theme was ANight 
Fliers@ and the participants made a paper owl craft, and owl and bat plushies. 
The teen group used conductive thread and LED lights to create light-up eyes for 
their plushies with the help of our volunteer Ken Olsen. 

$ Family Music Fun had 45 participants this month! This interactive music program 
for families led by local music instructors continues to be a hit for Saturday 
programming.  

$ The first Teen Animanga Book Club of the fall met with a small, but dedicated 
group of teens, led by Librarian Bonnie Brzozowski. 

$ Teen Makers, led by volunteer Ken Olsen, met twice in October. Each laptop was 
busy with young teens learning programming using Arduino and Raspberry Pi.  

$ R.E.A.D. Dogs are back! They will be visiting the Library on the fourth 
Wednesday of each month. This month=s program was featured on the front page 
of the October 23rd issue of the Gazette Times! http://bit.ly/1oC254S   

$ Grant Avenue Preschool brought two classes for storytime and a tour of the 
Youth department.    

$ Two of LBCC=s Live and Learn with Your Baby classes visited the Library for a 
special infant storytime and informal discussion of early literacy skills with 
parents. 

$ Librarian Dana Campbell attended a meeting of Teachers As Readers, a local 
group of members of the Oregon Reading Association. The teachers expressed 
interest in the library presenting Athe best new youth books@ on a regular basis 
with the group. 

$ It was spooky family movie afternoon on October 30th! The Library showed AHotel 
Transylvania@ to provide programming during this no-school day. 

$ Librarians Ruth Rose Hennessey and Kristy Kemper Hodge from Adult and 
Youth Services represented the Library at the Latino Festival at Linus Pauling 
Middle School. With 200 people attending, Ruth Rose and Kristy interacted with 
about 76 folks. 

$ Bonnie Brzozoski and Library Specialist III Shasta Barnes from Circulation 
Division attended OSU=s annual Beaver Fair with an interactive booth for the 
Library (sticker making! magnetic poetry!). They made stickers and chatted up 
the Library with about 126 students. 

$ Bonnie Brzozoski and Librarian Carrie Ottow provided information about the 
Library at the annual staff wellness fair. 

$ The Two Talking Wolves program with Ted Turner and others was fascinating 



and brought out a crowd of 53. 
$ National Novel Writing Month brought two kick off events to the Library this 

month: the Plot Planning Party and the Kick Off Party. These have been well 
attended and the enthusiasm surrounding writing 50,000 words in the month of 
November is contagious. 

$ Librarian Lindy Brown attended a training titled Dealing Effectively with the Angry 
Customer. We look forward to her teaching us what she learned 

$ Our two book clubs met as usual this month to discuss March, Book One by John 
Lewis and The Round House by Louise Erdrich. Fascinating conversation was 
surely inspired by those two amazing books. 

 
Extension Services 

$ Alsea Community Library is starting a new Adult program called Alsea Plays 
Tunes. The program is going to be led by local musicians and will occur the 
fourth Sunday of each month from 4-6pm. Alsea is doing a great job of 
brainstorming potential future Adult programming. 

$ We test drove a replacement Courier van and are getting the specs in order 
to start the procurement process. The Courier van is up for replacement this 
year.  

$ Monroe Community Library held their first Movie Night of the year and had an 
outstanding turnout of over 60 people. They also held another highly 
successful Fairy House program that drew approximately 100 participants. 

$ The Philomath Community Library Teen Maker program continues to be 
successful and the new Monday Baby Storytime continues to grow.  

$ Philomath partnered with the local fire department and held storytime at the 
station. It was a very successful event with outstanding participation from the 
PFR staff. We will definitely be partnering with them in the future. 

$ Brian Bucolo started as the new Courier for the Library system on October 
16th. Brian has been a long time sub in our system.  

 
B.  Other 

$ Patrons can now pay fines online using the My Account feature in our catalog. 
$ Staff attended training in procurement procedures presented by Finance 

Department. 
$ Library Management Team hosted a staff appreciation event that featured a 

variety of homemade desserts. Desserts were sent to branch libraries. 
$ Wellness Fair was held at the Library during the open enrollment period. Staff 

also had the opportunity to attend presentations on the new health insurance 
program. 

$ The Library participated in the earthquake preparedness drill. 
$ The A/V equipment in the Main Meeting Room is being upgraded. An HDMI 

connection is being added to our projector, a Blu-Ray player is replacing the 
standard DVD player, and the receiver for our wireless microphones is being 
replaced, plus additional wireless mics are being added.   

























FY 14/15 FY 13/14 % Change
Circulation

Main 354,354 366,685 -3.36%
Extensions 56,963 58,032 -1.84%
Library2Go 20,970 17,560 19.42%
Total 432,287 442,277 -2.26%

Registered Borrowers 47,130 48,842 -3.51%

Holds
Placed 70,058 71,857 -2.50%
Filled 75,968 76,993 -1.33%

Billing Notices Processed 630 819 -23.08%
Fines Collected $23,391 $22,282 4.98%
Net Lost & Paid $3,476 $3,180 9.31%

New Out of County Cards
Paid 7 2 250.00%
Free 46 40 15.00%
Total 53 42 26.19%

Visits
Door Count 174,886 177,479 -1.46%
Remote Usage 165,845 269,789 -38.53%
I-tiva 1,881 1,768 6.39%
Total 342,612 449,036 -23.70%

Staff Public Interactions
Ref/Info Questions 71,331 69,199 3.08%
Directional Questions 9,464 10,686 -11.44%
Meeting Room 166 216 -23.15%

Number of Volunteers YTD 213 204 4.41%
Volunteer Hours 3,823.00 3,556.00 7.51%

Items Added 7,462 8,099 -7.87%
Items Mended 3,820 4,946 -22.77%
Items Discarded 3,865 5,284 -26.85%

Total Items in Collection 373,552 366,547 1.91%

1st Quarter YTD Statistics Summary


	2014-11-03 Library Board Agenda
	2014-10-01 Library Board Minutes
	2014-11-03 Library Board Report for October with Attachments
	Report 10-2014 VERSION 2
	11-3-14  Library Board Report for October 

	1st Quarter FY 2014-15 Statistics Summary

